
STILLWATER TOWN BOARD MEETING 
March 21, 2024                    Township Hall - *Hybrid                       7:00 P.M. 

 
PRESENT:   Chairperson Supervisor Sheila-Marie Untiedt, Supervisors Robert Geisen, 

Tim Sinclair, Alan Robbins-Fenger and Jim Riehle. Clerk Barbara Riehle, CSO 
Mark Caroon, Maintenance Manager Rick Jacobson, Treasurer Marsha Olson, 

Planner Evan Monson, Attorney Jack Brooksbank (via Zoom), Engineer 
Michael Nielson, and Deputy Clerk Jennifer Maes were also present. 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

1. AGENDA –M/S/P Robbins-Fenger/Riehle moved to adopt the amended agenda edits 
as follows to: Add:   

Treasurer:  1. Computer Issues 

  2. EFT (Electronic Funds Transfer) 
  3. Disaster Paperwork 

CSO:  1. Bruette Roofing follow-up 
  2. EAB (Emerald Ash Borer) discussion 

3. Trip hazard 
Clerk:  1. PNP reporting process changes 

(5 ayes) 
 

2.  MINUTES –  
M/S/P Sinclair/Robbins-Fenger moved to approve the 02/22/24 Board meeting minutes 

(including Public Hearing minutes) as written. (4 ayes, Geisen abstains) Motion passed. 
 

3. ATTORNEY – Attorney Jack Brooksbank was present via Zoom to answer questions. 
 

4. ENGINEER – Engineer Michael Nielson was present. 

 
Pavement Management – Amy Grothaus, Account Manager/Senior Engineer with Braun 

Intertec was present to discuss the pavement management plan proposal. Ms. Grothaus 
explained that there are four steps in the process:  

1.) Evaluation of the condition of pavement. 
2.) Data collected in step one would then be used to develop policy. 

3.) Determine funding needs for planning purposes. 
4.) Tracking  

 
Ms. Grothaus explained the reasoning behind Pavement Management. The goal is to 

collect the inventory data and then create a pavement life cycle curve. The curve data 
would help aid in timing the maintenance techniques. 

 
The pavement condition process was included in the proposal. An evaluator would come 

to look at the condition of pavement on our roads and would be documenting the 

distress type, severity (index rated 0-100) and extent of the condition. A Pavement 
Condition Index (PCI) map or GIS map was suggested to maintain a pavement network. 

The PCI would help develop the repair needs of township roads. Once the condition of 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 2 

the streets is known, the goal would be to estimate the repair costs and compare them 
to the budget. 

 
Supervisor Riehle asked how they work within the oil fluctuation cost parameters? 

Engineer Nielson noted that the budget could be adjusted as needed. Treasurer Olson 
added that the cost model comes from our Engineering firm. Adjustments are made so 

that we do not have a need to bond. Engineer Nielson commented that he believes this 
is one of the best investments to make regarding our roads instead of putting money 

into chip sealing that may not be warranted.  
 

Supervisor Geisen asked how often the survey would need to be done. Engineer Nielson 
noted every 3 to 4 years it should be updated. Ms. Grothaus noted it would take 

approximately 7 days to complete the survey for our 24 miles of roadway. 
 

Supervisor Sinclair asked what kind of database was used and what the projections are. 

Ms. Grothaus noted that for our township it may be best to use the GIS and spreadsheet 
and explained why there is a benefit to doing repeat surveys and storing information 

such as daily traffic counts (DTC), visual, PCI surface management and 
thickness/strength.  

 
Supervisor Geisen asked if coring is included in the $16,000 proposal. Ms. Grothaus 

noted that it does not include coring. 
 

Treasurer Olson noted the Road & Bridge Balance is currently at $308,000 for 
maintenance. 

 
Supervisor Robbins-Fenger commented that the GIS data could be kept over the years 

and then updated data could be added to it. 
 

Supervisor Geisen noted that the GIS data collection which includes visual inspections is 

added but core depths are still unknown. Engineer Nielson noted that approximately 
80% of current roadway data on spreadsheet would be transferred into GIS, but the 

remaining amount would need to be cored and recorded.  
 

Ms. Grothaus noted that some agencies collect the baseline condition data and then 
one-third of the data is collected every 3 years. In addition, she noted that counties in 

MN get their state-aid roadways and county roadways evaluated by MNDOT. Three 
pieces of information are collected: ride quality, surface condition and a composite of 

the two. 
 

Supervisors looked more closely at the project proposal costs and asked questions 
based on both the proposal and future needs.  

 
M/S/P Sinclair/Robbins-Fenger moved to accept the proposal from Braun Intertec for the 

pavement management NTE $16,026 with $5,000 additional GIS work. (3 ayes, Geisen 

nay and Riehle abstain) Motion passes. 
 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 3 

Supervisor Robbins-Fenger would like the minutes to reflect his suggestion to keep the 
GIS pavement management tool going so that it does not end after one time use.  

 
Sign Reflectivity - Engineer Nielson noted that we do not currently have a program in 

place. A sign replacement rotation could be helpful for budgeting purposes.  
Currently, we order signs, pay for them and Miller installs them. 

 
CSO Caroon commented that he gets calls from residents when a sign needs reflectivity 

review.  
 

Supervisor Geisen commented that we should not direct our Engineer to create a 
program.  

 
5. COMMUNITY SERVICE DEPARTMENT – CSO Mark Caroon was present. He reported 

that February’s calls were slower than average. 

•  Total monthly calls for February - 62.  
•  Burn permits for February - 12. His contact with the DNR Forestry Division said if 

there are 3” of snow, permits can be issued.  
•  Clerk Riehle added “Crime Mapping” to the website for the Washington County 

Sheriff’s Office. 
•  Dirt roads may not be plowed with the coming snow since the ground is no longer 

frozen. 
 

(PEOPLE PORTION) –  
 

Bruette Follow-up – CSO Caroon reported that there has been considerable clean up. He 
did another recheck on the Bruette property and there are still a couple of items they 

need to remedy before compliance would be met. CSO Caroon will call Mr. Bruette and 
will send him a letter of non-compliance. CSO Caroon has been relaying through 

someone who lives there but it has not been done. CSO Caroon is asking the Board for 

further enforcement. The Board directed CSO Caroon to send a firm letter with a 
deadline. The letter should also include an installation of fines and review of his Non-

conforming Use Permit, which may result in revocation.  
 

Resident Clark Boadwine was present to comment. Mr. Boadwine believes Mr. Bruette 
does not take his permit seriously. He noted some historical timeline issues. In 2007, it 

took three months for Mr. Bruette to clean up his property. At that time, Attorney Soren 
Mattick gave two options to either become compliant or receive the penalty which would 

be revocation of the permit. In the past 17 years, Mr. Bruette has been brought before 
the Board 7-8 more times. This issue of non-compliance remains ongoing. Mr. Boadwine 

added that the use of the property is no longer just storage. The original permit is from 
1991, which details termination of the permit due to non-compliance. 

 
Supervisor Riehle asked whether the township could revoke the permit for a six-month 

period. Attorney Jack Brooksbank entered the conversation via Zoom. He suggested 

looking at the ordinance to see whether there is a permit suspension option. In addition, 
Attorney Brooksbank suggested a more threatening letter be sent before further action 

is taken. 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 4 

 
M/S/P Geisen/Sinclair moved to authorize our Attorney to send a letter of the violations, 

to include a compliance date of 20 days and if it is not complied with the Board will 
follow up with a public hearing on revoking the Non-conforming Use Permit. (5 ayes) 

 
Emerald Ash Borer – CSO Caroon and Clerk Riehle received an email from a resident 

who is interested in funding or a program available to remove diseased trees. Currently, 
Washington County and the DNR do not have anything. However, the DNR said the 

Township could apply for a grant. Clerk Riehle added that Park Manager Kim Reich 
forwarded a couple of websites to her about tree cutting services that give private 

landowners a discount for ash tree removal. Ms. Reich will bring the info to the next 
Park Committee meeting for further consideration and review. 

 
Short-Term Rental – Complaints – A couple of email complaints were received by Clerk 

Riehle and shared with CSO Caroon and the Town Board. Pictures and video were sent 

in from the homeowner along with a letter. CSO Caroon reported that he did not receive 
any voicemails on the alleged date.  

 
Planner Monson commented on enforcement as stated in the Short-Term Rental 

Ordinance. Complaints can be made by various methods to the Sheriff or CSO. The CSO 
shall investigate and determine the validity of complaints received, and forward those 

onto the Board. 
 

Resident and STR Operator, Brandon Maxwell at 9378 Neal Ave N. was present to speak 
to the complaints. He read the response letter, written by his wife Amanda, aloud to the 

Board and would like it to be part of the minutes. Said letter will be made available to 
the public for review, by appointment with Clerk Riehle, but will not be formally posted 

to the website.  
 

CSO Caroon commented further on parking and traffic and suggested any noise 

complaints be filed with the Sheriff's Office; 10:00 pm is quiet time. CSO Caroon asked 
Mr. Maxwell whether they limit the number of people that can be at the residence. 

 
Supervisor Robbins-Fenger referred to Ordinance 196 Section 7g.; determining if there 

was a legitimate violation according to the ordinance in terms of the renters holding an 
event at the property. 

 
Resident Anna Buehler (related to the Maxwells), asked about the ordinance language, 

and the intention of putting language referencing wedding, event, etc. Chair Untiedt 
responded that it was to avoid unlicensed event centers. This is a business operating in 

a residential area. CSO Carron noted that if there is an event anywhere in the township 
it would require a Special Events Permit. 

 
Supervisor Geisen commented that he thought there was not a violation made by the 

STR owner or the renters but was concerned with a neighbor entering the property 

without invitation or welcome. A suggestion is to anyone making a complaint, to contact 
the CSO and/or the Sheriff’s Office. CSO Caroon does have an incident report that he 

keeps. 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 5 

 
Supervisor Robbins-Fenger suggested another note from the STR owner giving contact 

information to neighbors. 
 

There was no further action. 
 

6. PLANNER – Planner Monson was present to recap the discussion from last month’s 
meeting. At the February meeting, the Board reviewed two possible amendments to 

ordinances for Zoning and Mining, which would eliminate the Annual Operating Permit 
(AOP) requirement for mines. There was further discussion as to whether moving 

forward the Township would continue permitting. Currently, an Annual Operating Permit 
(AOP) and an Interim Use Permit (IUP) are required by the Township.  

 
The Board reviewed a third draft ordinance, which included change suggestions from 

last month’s public hearing and would amend both the Township’s Zoning Ordinance and 

Ordinance #156 (Mining). Included was a clean draft ordinance and a red-lined version 
of Ordinance #156. It shows what exists and what the new language looks like. 

 
Supervisor Geisen noted that at the December 2023 meeting, the Board agreed to move 

and transition away from the current permitting framework and remove the AOP and 
IUP requirements. Supervisor Geisen noted that the new draft includes an IUP. 

 
Planner Monson noted that at the February meeting, one option was to remove both the 

AOP & IUP, and another option was to keep the IUP only. The Board at the February 
meeting was interested in seeing an option where the Town continues to require a 

permit tailored to a few outstanding issues. 
 

Supervisor Geisen noted that if there was not an IUP, our Ordinances could be enforced 
at any time. 

 

Supervisor Robbins-Fenger noted that there are multiple mines in Washington County. 
The IUP under this third draft would be kept for Sniff testing of recycled soil and ground 

water testing. 
 

Supervisor Geisen noted that the ordinance would include that and could be enforced 
without an IUP. If the County recognizes our ordinances, it should be in their permitting 

process. 
 

Chair Untiedt noted that the County has expertise and resources to enforce the mine 
and do the water testing. When the AOP process began, the original intent was to help 

with the traffic concerns.  
 

Washington County sent a letter recently to Michael and John Raleigh and Miller 
Excavating regarding their County-issued CUP. 

 

Attorney Jack Brookbank noted that the Township should not pass any ordinances that 
the Board are not capable of enforcing. Mr. Brookbank noted that an email received 

confirmed that the County is requiring groundwater testing. 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 6 

 
Supervisor Geisen suggested that we remove all but the Zoning and note that the 

permitting and enforcement is done by the County. The County either adopts 
groundwater testing or they do not. Should they not adopt the water testing, then the 

Township could change the ordinance to reflect a requirement for groundwater testing. 
 

Planner Monson noted the Board has two options: 
1. To approve the draft ordinance #200, with or without changes. 

2. Table the draft ordinance for further review/study. 
 

Supervisor Robbins-Fenger volunteered to call Washington County to clarify the 
groundwater testing methods they would undertake and will provide a response in April.  

 
Planner Monson noted that in February the “short version” draft ordinance is the draft 

that removes both the AOP and the IUP. Minor changes could be made to the draft 

ordinance to disallow asphalt plants in addition to no street sweepings. 
 

M/S/P Sinclair/Geisen moved to table further draft ordinance discussion until the April 
meeting. Staff will provide an updated draft ordinance to include language of 

disallowance for street sweepings and asphalt to the “short version” from February’s 
draft ordinance for the April meeting. (5 ayes) 

 
Explore Roundabout Hwy96/Norell Ave with Washington County - Chair Untiedt would 

like to get involved in the process to lessen the impact of any roundabout on Otto Berg 
Park. Planner Monson noted that there is a corridor study that will occur this year. The 

jurisdictional road transfer occurred, so now Highway 96 is a County Road and not a 
State Highway.  

 
Supervisor Geisen indicated that a letter was sent previously to the County to lessen the 

impact on Otto Berg Park. Clerk Riehle will double check and will forward it to the Board. 

The Valley Athletic Association (VAA) could be impacted should a roundabout overtake 
the fields. 

 
Chair Untiedt suggested future notification to engage community members. 

 
7. TREASURER –  

a. Report given by Ms. Olson.  
 

The township had $3,240,469.23 in cash and investments at the end of February 2024. 
Not a lot to report against budget. We did get more gas tax than was budgeted.  

 
 b. Claims and Checks #24398 through #24433 EFT 031424 ABC; EFT 032224 

ABCDEFG were approved for payment.  
 

 c. Computer Issues – Treasurer Olson reported computer issues with “boot up.” It 

was purchased in 2020. It is used only for Stillwater Township. Maintenance Manager 
Rick Jacobson suggested a new computer due to the importance of her role and duties 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 7 

and then to convert her 2020 computer as a refurbished secondary computer for town 
hall because it uses Windows since the current town hall computer has limitations. 

 
M/S/P Geisen/Riehle moved to allocate NTE $1,000 for the purchase of a new computer 

with Office 365 for Treasurer Olson and to convert the 2020 computer as refurbished for 
town hall. (5 ayes)  

 
 d. EFT (Electronic Funds Transfer) – Treasurer Olson noted that every year we must 

abide by the MN State Statute 471.38 when making electronic funds transfer. The policy 
needs to be signed this year.  

 
M/S/P Geisen/Sinclair moved to authorize Chair Untiedt to sign the EFT policy this year. 

(5 ayes) 
 

 e. Disaster Paperwork – Treasurer Olson noted that she connected with Homeland 

Security, and we have up until May 5, 2024 (declaration date by Governor Walz) to get 
all work done from the storm on April 1, 2023. If an extension is needed, we will need 

to notify Homeland Security. 
 

Supervisor Sinclair was asked to contact Miller for clarification. 
 

Treasurer Olson and Clerk Riehle will meet to work on paperwork completion and 
submittal.  

 
8. OLD BUSINESS –  

 
Policy Review - Supervisor Geisen passed out a handout with updated policy on 

performance reviews and pay rates. In January, it was reviewed with suggestions to 
consider including a “bonus award” for going above and beyond standard duties.  

Chair Untiedt asked whether this should be done at the Budget meeting. 

Supervisor Geisen noted this policy is related to performance and feedback. The vote on 
pay rates would occur in November, included in the budget, and begin January of the 

new year.  
 

Clerk Riehle noted that this conversation was brought up at the end of 2023 but tabled 
until all Supervisors were present. In addition, Clerk Riehle noted that she reached out 

to the MN Association of Townships (MAT), and they have in their manual performance 
reviews where an employee can be reviewed in closed session by Statute. 

 
M/S/P Geisen/Riehle moved to adopt the performance review policy as proposed 

including determination of pay rates. (4 ayes, Sinclair nay) Motion passes. 
 

Compensation Review – Due to the nature of the topic, Supervisor Riehle has excused 
himself from the conversation.  

 

Treasurer Olson noted the 2025 budget included increases for staff (Clerk, Treasurer, 
Deputy Clerk and CSO).  

 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 8 

The Earned Sick & Safe Time (ESST) was budgeted for but there are changes coming. 
 

M/S/P Geisen/Robbins-Fenger moved to adjust the pay rate for the Clerk to 
$37.00/hour, Deputy Clerk to $28.00/hour and Treasurer to $35.00/hour, all retroactive 

to January 1, 2024. (3 ayes, Sinclair nay, Riehle abstain)  
  

9. NEW BUSINESS – 
 

Valley Green Contract – 2024/2025 season – Supervisors reviewed the proposed 
contract.  

 
M/S/P Sinclair/Geisen moved to approve the contract with Valley Green and for Chair 

Untiedt to sign. (5 ayes) 
 

Donations – Clerk Riehle brought forward the organizations and their requested 

amounts. Library $5,000, Washington County Historical Society $3,000, Youth Service 
Bureau $5,750, and Community Thread $500. 

 
M/S/P Geisen/Robbins-Fenger moved to approve the donation amounts as stated above. 

(5 ayes) 
 

Secretary of State – State of Main Street – Supervisor Sheila-Marie Untiedt attended a 
forum with State Auditor Julie Blaha. There are people from Counties, Cities and 

Townships who participate looking at trends, concerns, etc. Chair Untiedt learned that 
3% of our annual revenue come from grants, taxes. Most townships get 20% in state 

aid. We only get 3% external; 97% is property tax revenue. Most townships lack EMS 
Services, we do not have those issues. Also, in most communities’ administrative costs 

were 20% and fire 10%; noting our township is very efficient.  
 

Supervisors noted that it is costly to become a City versus a Township. Cost 

considerations related to police department, public safety, sewer, water, and Section-8 
housing.  

 
10. PLANNING COMMISSION – No report. 

 
11. PARK COMMITTEE – No report. 

 
12. COMMUNICATION COMMITTEE – No report. 

 
13.  CLERK –    

 
Town Hall Passive-Use Application – Clerk Riehle met with the Stage Manager, Producer 

and Director. Clerk Riehle received an application from The Zephyr Theater. The 
requested use on the application was for 4x/week in June and July and potentially 1 

weekend afternoon per week. Supervisors felt the request is not considered passive use 

which defines as occasional. 
 



Stillwater Town Board Mtg. – 032124   Page 9 

M/S/P Sinclair/Geisen moved to deny the application based on the use not being passive 
according to our policy as it is written. (5 ayes) 

 
Security Access – Clerk Riehle reported on the request for fob/key access to the building 

by our Park Manager. Currently we have 7 fob/key users (Clerk, Deputy Clerk, 
Maintenance Manager, CSO, Treasurer, Building Inspector and Board Chairperson) who 

need access for administrative reasons. Committee Members who enter the building 
would have a Clerk present. We have a lock box for drop off. Arrangements can be 

made with a fob user for access, as necessary. Additionally, the office needs to be re-
keyed for security purposes. 

 
M/S/P Sinclair/Robbins-Fenger moved to authorize Clerk Riehle to have the office re-

keyed and only the 7 current fob users will get the key. (5 ayes) 
 

Elections Reporting Process changes – Clerk Riehle reported that the Secretary of States 

Office (OSS) has a new process for reporting for reimbursement. A virtual information 
session will take place Friday morning, Clerk Riehle will be attending and setting up the 

account for this reporting process. 
 

Clerk Riehle mentioned to the Board that there is always the option to have a JPA 
structure for elections. 

 
Trip Hazard – Supervisors and Maintenance Manager, Rick Jacobson discussed ways to 

fix the condition of the concrete. Mud jacking was suggested as a solution. A contractor 
will be consulted for a quote. 

 
14. ADJORNMENT – M/S/P Sinclair/Riehle moved to adjourn the meeting. The meeting 

was adjourned at 10:00 p.m. (5 ayes) 
 

The next Town Board meeting is scheduled for Thursday, April 11, 2024, at 7:00PM. 

 
 

Clerk______________________________________ 
 

 
Chairperson_________________________________ 

  
 

Approved___________________________________ 
 

 


